KENT STATE

V E R §
Educatlonal Policies Councﬂ

Meeting Minutes
Monday, 17 November 2025
VIEW THE MEETING

Leadership present: Chair Edward Dauterich; Secretaries Joanna Liedel, Jennifer S. Kellogg,
Amy Nuesch, Christa N. Ord, Kristi M. Kamis

Administrators present: Associate Provost Scott C. Sheridan; Deans Peggy Shadduck, Deborah
F. Spake

Faculty present: Professors Luke Armour, Jen Cunningham, Michael J. Ensley, Robert D.
Jewell, Karen L. Mascolo, Helen Piontkivska, JD Ponder, Steve Rugare; Associate Professors
Brian R. Barber, Vanessa J. Earp, Bethany G. Lanese, Abe G. Osbourne, Joanathan F. Swoboda,
Sue Wamsley; Assistant Professors Tianyuan Guan, Jason Lorenzon, Janet M. Reed; Senior
Lecturers Kingsly T. Berlin, Shelley K. Marshall

Faculty not present: Professor J K. Vick; Assistant Professor Abdelhakim Al Turk
Students present: Iyanuoluwa Ogunmiluyi

Guests: Christina Bloebaum, Frank Congin, Scott Courtney, David Dees, Chris Dorsten,
Kathleen Durant, Erica Eckert, Susan Emens, Shannon Helfinstine, Aviad Israeli, Mark
Lyberger, Miriam Matteson, Aaron Mulrooney, Jennifer Newberger, Dirk Remley, Matthew
Rollyson, John Sankovic, Hollie Simpson, Alison Smith, Kathy Spicer, Lisa Testa, Teresa Villa-
Ignacio, Jennifer Walton-Fisette, Dee Warren, Sharon Wohl, Cathy Zingrone

Chair Dauterich called the meeting to order at 3:20p.m., on Monday, 17 November 2025, via
Microsoft Teams.

I. Approval of Minutes
A. Meeting on 20 October 2025

Senior Lecturer Marshall made a motion to approve, and Professor Piontkivska seconded the
motion.

Chair Dauterich stated there was a name missing from page one.
Secretary Ord acknowledged.

With no other comments or corrections, the minutes passed unanimously.


https://www.kent.edu/provost/curriculum/educational-policies-council
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=BqW7v2&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifX0%3D

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

II. Presentation

A. Updates on Re-Envisioning the Kent Core

VIEW THE PRESENTATION

Associate Professor Dees explained that the general education revision process is on schedule
for. He reviewed the major recommendations emerging from the work: adopting six new
learning outcomes, creating a separate faculty governing committee for general education,
implementing a revised course distribution model, establishing a student advisory committee,
and renaming to the “Pathways of Inquiry” to reflect a more integrated and outcomes-driven
approach. He summarized the multi-year development process beginning with extensive
information-gathering in year one, design and model development in year two and expanded
student engagement and revision in year three. He noted how state requirements including OT36,
Senate Bill 1 and related legislation shaped the framework. The current model incorporates the
Big Six outcomes, revised category language that aligns with student feedback, the American
Civics requirement and a new “pressing issues” category intended to help students explore
significant societal challenges from multiple perspectives. Throughout the process the team
emphasized continuous assessment, faculty leadership, student input and maintaining alignment
with both institutional goals and state expectations.

Professor Cunningham asked if “Emerging Technologies” is a standalone course or a category
that will include many courses.

Associate Professor Dees explained that Category I was envisioned to operate like the civics
requirement, where a small number of courses would be available immediately but additional
courses would be added through a broader call so students would have more options. He noted
that History and Political Science quickly adapted two courses to meet the civics requirement
and similar expansion is expected in other areas. He added that the emerging technologies
category is intended to follow the same model as a category rather than a single course, with
multiple departments developing relevant offerings. He referenced ongoing work including
courses that incorporate Al (Artificial Intelligence) and other technology-focused content. He
added that if a category becomes a requirement, it will run consistently, and each area should be
viewed as a category like basic science where students choose from a menu of courses to meet
the requirement.

Professor Piontkivska asked how the process for incorporating student feedback will ensure that
input is gathered from students across a broad range of majors and colleges rather than relying on
only the most vocal participants.

Associate Professor Dees explained that while the idea of a student advisory group is promising
and initial conversations with student government have begun, the challenge is ensuring all
student voices are represented. He emphasized that faculty ultimately understand course design
better than students, noting that some student suggestions, such as creating a course on balancing
a checkbook, do not align with what constitutes a college-level course. Associate Professor Dees
suggested the group function as a sounding board similar to an existing media advisory group
that offers monthly feedback on campaigns. In this model, the student advisory group would
provide insight to the faculty oversight committee about emerging topics and student priorities,
recognizing that faculty need significant lead time to develop new courses. He noted that
universities using thematic courses often rotate topics every few years rather than overhaul


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=90Cv1i&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6MTIxLjQyfX0%3D

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

everything at once. He believes piloting this approach will help establish a sustainable process
for gathering meaningful student input while ensuring faculty maintain academic leadership.

Professor Piontkivska expressed concern that students may believe they understand the issues
under discussion without having the necessary background knowledge, leaving them
misinformed. She noted that when students offer suggestions that are not acted on, they may
become upset. She added that the students who are actively engaged in their academic and
campus responsibilities may not provide feedback, while those who do offer extensive feedback
may need more guidance before they can provide meaningful input. She also cautioned that
groups like student government are self-selected and may not represent the full range of student
perspectives. To address these concerns, she suggested creating an open email box or similar
mechanism, modeled on survey practices that collect students’ colleges or majors, that could be
managed by a group such as student government. Faculty could have audit access to ensure
transparency, and the group could compile and summarize student suggestions each month.

Associate Professor Dees described a process used at another university where a vetted list of
ideas was sent to the entire student body for a vote, ensuring proposals were feasible and
academically appropriate. He emphasized the importance of actively obtaining student input,
noting that previous surveys conducted every five or six years were often after the fact. To gather
more representative feedback, the team expanded beyond student government to engage students
directly in classrooms and introductory courses, as well as on multiple campuses including
Tuscarawas, Salem and Ashtabula, to ensure a broad range of student perspectives were
included.

Associate Professor Ponder noted that large-scale processes can become drawn out and
overwhelming. He emphasized the importance of the next phases highlighting that units often
struggle to gather enough information to make informed decisions and to understand how
committees make decisions. He asked whether there is a process in place for units to connect
with a lead in a specific area to clarify what fits within each category and determine whether
their courses or programs align with the proposed buckets.

Associate Professor Dees explained that the design team has prepared draft suggestions for the
course submission process, which will be handed to the Faculty Oversight Committee. The goal
is to provide a starting point without requiring the committee to start from scratch. He
emphasized the importance of supporting faculty teaching these courses and including guidance
on resources and learning support in the course proposals. Associate Professor Dees outlined that
the Faculty Oversight Committee, with some administrative liaisons, will work alongside URCC
for the first two years on course approvals, evaluation and assessment, after which the structure
will be reevaluated. He highlighted that the process includes continuous improvement, allowing
courses, committees and priorities to evolve over time, reflecting his experience with prior core
curriculum revisions and the need for ongoing updates.

Associate Professor Ponder asked about the next stages of the assessment process, specifically
how Kent State University plans to continue evolving and iterating on pressing issues and other
forms of assessment over time.

Associate Professor Dees explained that the assessment process will follow best practices from
AAC&U and the Higher Learning Commission, creating a systematic agreed-upon approach.



Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

The Faculty Oversight Committee will determine whether assessment occurs course by course,
by outcome or through specific assignments. Disciplinary input will be prioritized with faculty in
each field collaborating to assess outcomes like flexible thinking, ensuring evaluation methods
are appropriate for each discipline.

Professor Rugare expressed concern about the increasing demands of assessment, noting that he
could be required to complete three or four separate assessment processes for the same course.
He emphasized the importance of simplicity to make the process workable, pointing out that
current accreditation requirements are excessively cumbersome and continually becoming more
burdensome.

Associate Professor Dees emphasized the need to frequently acknowledge concerns about the
growing workload and the importance of simplifying the process. He noted that the Faculty
Oversight Committee could thoughtfully manage this by addressing one disciplinary bucket at a
time and working through it step by step. He highlighted that having more people involved adds
complexity but also strengthens the collective wisdom.

Professor Cunningham noted that the state guidance emphasizes using existing Gen Ed courses
to meet new requirements rather than adding new courses. She suggested that for topics like Al,
the requirement could be satisfied by integrating content into already approved Gen Ed courses
and tracking compliance, such as by checking a box on those courses.

Professor Dees discussed House Bill 96 and emphasized the importance of tracking learning
outcomes rather than adding new courses. He suggested that requirements like Al could be
integrated into existing outcomes such as information literacy but stressed that the university
must document that all students meet the requirement. Associate Professor Dees highlighted
Kent State’s history of leading curricular innovation with the OT36 requirement and expressed a
desire to lead again by showing best practices. He emphasized balancing assessment and
flexibility, ensuring students meet outcomes. He expects the Faculty Oversight Committee to
identify gaps, monitor outcomes like flexible thinking and communication and iteratively
improve the curriculum while maintaining documentation.

I1I. Policy Proposals Review

A. Action Items

Undergraduate Policies Council

1. Academic Standing — Undergraduate Student—Revise policy (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Director Liedel explained that the policy changes are mostly formatting updates with a few
substantive adjustments already included in the CIM proposal and previously circulated for 15-
day comments. Key changes include removing midterm warning since it is a standalone policy,
renaming to “Progression Program Requirements” and reducing the hours of eligibility for
President's List to match Dean's List at 12 hours of graded credit. This change ensures students
are not disadvantaged by Flashes 101, which no longer counts toward graded hours. Additional
updates include formatting improvements and inclusion of FAQs and related policies.

Professor Piontkivska made a motion to approve, and Associate Professor Ponder seconded the
motion.


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=C0L11A&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NDExOH19

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

2. Course Numbering System—Revise policy (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Director Liedel reported that the next two policies, brought forward by Undergraduate Policies
Council (UPC) and Graduate Policies Council (GPC), cover both undergraduate and graduate
students and are primarily formatting updates from the new policy review process. The updates
clarify course numbering without changing the existing five-digit system, removing outdated
terms like freshman and sophomore to reflect students entering with AP or CCP credits.
Graduate program rules, such as limiting 50% of a master’s program to 50,000-level courses,
were clarified, and relevant information from the Curriculum Services website was incorporated.
FAQs were added to help students understand course nomenclature and answer common
advising questions.

Senior Lecturer Marshall made a motion to approve, and Professor Armour seconded.

Associate Dean Wohl asked for clarification on 50000-level courses. She noted two slightly
different statements in the catalog: one indicating that 50000 to 59999 courses are graduate
courses offered alongside undergraduate counterparts, and another stating that most 50000-level
courses are also offered at the 40000 level. She explained that some graduate programs list
50000-level courses as preliminary courses in multi-year degrees. She added that they are being
asked to slash them with 40000-level courses, which is not really the intent of having them at the
50000 level, and does not have clarification on how that works or what is allowed under the
current policy.

Secretary Kellogg suggested removing the word "most" from the policy regarding graduate
coursework to ensure clarity. She explained the 50% rule, noting that certain courses must be at
the 60000-level versus the 50, and that the 50-level courses are paired with 40-level courses. She
emphasized using consistent language so that a 40-level course is paired with a 50-level course
and vice versa.

Associate Dean Wohl noted that some graduate courses cannot be paired or slashed with
undergraduate courses because the program does not have a corresponding undergraduate
degree.

Secretary Kellogg suggested the course be at the 60000-1evel.

Associate Dean Wohl explained that in multi-year graduate programs, some 50000-level courses
are intended as foundational coursework, while more advanced courses occur at the 60000-level,
reflecting intentional sequencing in the curriculum.

Secretary Kellogg noted that the sequential pattern of courses could be clarified and suggested
that alternative methods, such as using the second or third digit in the course numbering, might

achieve this.

Director Liedel asked for clarification if the word “may” should be revised.


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=taC0Qh&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NDMwMH19

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

Chair Dauterich stated that any change would require a motion from an EPC member, and if
someone moves and seconds it, a vote could occur before voting on the policy.

Senior Lecturer Marshall made a motion to accept the friendly amendment, and Professor
Armour seconded the motion.

The item passed with 17 yeas and three abstentions.

3. Grade Point Average (GPA)—Revise policy (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Director Liedel explained that the policy, reviewed by GPC and UPC, involved a regular review
of grade point average. No changes were made to GPA weights, major, minor, certificate GPA or
Latin honors. The update focused on reformatting, updating language and creating a visual to
help explain GPA calculation for visual learners.

Associate Professor Wamsley made a motion to approve, and Assistant Professor Reed
seconded.

With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

IV. Program Proposals Review

A. Action Items

College of Aeronautics

1. Aviation Maintenance Management Theory — Minor—Establish minor (fa/l 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Dean Bloebaum provided an overview of the College of Engineering, Technology and
Aeronautics, highlighting its hands-on approach across all programs. She explained the
distinction between theoretical engineering, focused on designing new systems and engineering
technology, which applies existing tools to create solutions. The college offers parallel programs
allowing students to move between theoretical and technology tracks. She presented enrollment
trends, showing continuous growth across the college, improved student GPA and increasing
numbers of honor students. Pathway partnerships with K-12 schools, community colleges and
international programs support this growth. Graduate programs include a Master of Engineering
Technology, M.S. and Ph.D. in Aerospace Engineering, Mechatronics Engineering and M.S. and
Ph.D. in Aviation Science, with research areas relevant to Industrial and Systems Engineering
(ISE) such as Al, autonomous systems, Virtual Reality (VR) and Augmented Reality (AR) and
drones. Dean Bloebaum emphasized the national and state demand for ISE, citing BLS and Jobs
Ohio data with 11% job growth. Ohio is a leading manufacturing hub, and Northeast Ohio
accounts for a significant portion of that industry. She noted that only Ohio State and Wright
State accredit both industrial and systems engineering, while Youngstown University and Ohio
University have more limited programs. The college has strong faculty expertise, academic and
research labs, and access to industry-standard tools, including a Digital Engineering Design
Center funded by the Department of Defense through National Center for Defense manufacturing
and Machining (NCDMM). She highlighted the program’s rigorous theoretical, mathematical
and scientific foundation, positioning it uniquely in the state and nationally.

Professor Piontkivska made a motion to approve, and Assistant Professor Reed seconded the
motion.


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=zZHvIT&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NDc2Nn19
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=bhYYaE&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NDk0NX19

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

School of Engineering

2. Cast Metals — Minor—Establish minor (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Dean Bloebaum provided an overview of the Cast Metals minor, highlighting the unique foundry
facility at Kent State, which has been in operation since the 1960s and is one of very few in Ohio
and the country. The minor supports hands-on learning in casting, complementing additive
manufacturing and 3D printing and is accredited by the Foundry Educational Foundation (FEF).
The minor builds on the B.S. in Industrial Engineering Technology and can also be paired with
the new Industrial and Systems Engineering program, allowing students broader industry
opportunities while meeting FEF cast metals requirements. Requirements include CAD and
materials and processes courses, which are already part of the engineering curriculum, with only
an additional nine hours needed for the minor. Dean Bloebaum emphasized that the minor
strengthens students’ practical skills, aligns with advanced manufacturing workforce needs, and
supports regional campus students. She noted that nationally, there are few certified programs,
with only Ohio State University and Youngstown State having similar offerings. Employment
data shows strong demand for cast metals expertise, particularly in Northeast Ohio, with
Cleveland ranking fourth nationally for cast metals employment.

Associate Professor Earp motioned to approve, and Senior Lecturer Marshall seconded.
With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

3. Industrial and Systems Engineering — B.S.—Establish degree program (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Assistant Professor Lorenzon provided an overview of the undergraduate aeronautics programs
at Kent State including Aviation Maintenance Management, Aviation Management Professional
Pilot, Unmanned Aircraft Systems Flight Operations and ATC, noting FAA certification and
Aviation Accreditation Board International (AABI). Aviation Maintenance Management is
temporarily suspended pending the launch of a Part 149 aviation program. He highlighted
international 2+2 partnerships with universities in Uzbekistan, Turkmenistan, Kazakhstan,
Rwanda, Vietnam and Senegal as well as collaborations with Rwanda Air. BLS data indicates 5-
6% growth in aviation operations and management with strong workforce demand globally and
regionally including advanced air mobility. The proposed Aviation Management minor is 100%
online, requires 12 additional credit hours beyond core aviation courses and is in high demand
even before launch. The program leverages Kent State’s fleet of 36 aircraft, FAA-certified repair
station status and faculty expertise to train students in maintenance, compliance, fleet
management, safety, reliability and engineering. The minor supports workforce needs for
advanced air mobility and maintenance with projections of 1500+ jobs, 50+ trainees per year,
100+ certificates, 15 new companies and $300 million+ economic impact.

Associate Professor Ponder made a motion to approve, and Dean Shadduck seconded.

With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=krtSVg&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NTU1Mn19
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=KjuiPZ&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NTkzM319

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

College of Architecture and Design

4. Landscape Architecture — M.L.A. I[I—Inactivate degree program (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Associate Dean Wohl stated that the program is a research-focused master’s in landscape. She
noted that there is a separate professional-oriented degree for students seeking to become
registered architects. This research program has been offered for 12 years and has not yet had
any graduates. She added that only three students have ever started the program, and they later
transitioned to other programs. For students interested in a research-oriented degree in the design
disciplines, she noted that the M.S. in Architecture and Environmental Design program is
available and any interested students would be directed to that option.

Associate Professor Ponder made a motion to approve, and Dean Shadduck seconded.
With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

College of Arts and Sciences

School of Modern and Classical Language Studies

5. Translation and Multilingual Communication — Minor—Establish minor (fa/l 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Associate Professor Villa-Ignacio summarized the proposed Translation Minor, designed to
allow students from any major or minor to study translation with specialized faculty while
pursuing other programs. Kent State offers a two-year M.A. in Translation, a top-ranked
professional program, an interdisciplinary Ph.D. in Translation Studies, and the only B.S. in
Translation in the U.S. The minor addresses longstanding student interest from language majors
and minors as well as students in business, communications, criminology, cybersecurity,
emerging media, fashion, hospitality, marketing, nursing, political science, public affairs, public
health and psychology. It is open to students of any language proficiency, including languages
not offered in upper-division courses at Kent State. The minor requires 18 credit hours, including
four required courses already offered in the BS in Translation and two elective courses totaling
six credit hours from translation, English, media or journalism. The B.S. in Translation will be
paused starting fall 2026 for revision to align with industry needs, including Al integration and
enhanced language proficiency preparation. Industry data indicate a 30% growth in language-
related jobs over the next five years, with 90% of US employers relying on employees with
language skills beyond English and 47% needing language skills for domestic work. The minor
provides students a pathway to continue translation coursework while the B.S. is updated.

Professor Piontkivska made a motion to approve, and Associate Professor Ensley seconded.

Professor Piontkivska raised the impact of Al on translation, noting that Al will not replace
translators. She asked whether there are plans to address student concerns about this or if
students are already well-informed about how languages work.

Associate Professor Villa-Ignacio explained that at the master’s level there may be some concern
about Al, but interest in the program remains strong. The curriculum addresses Al on two fronts:
integrating machine translation and generative Al into translation technology courses and
teaching students about human responsibilities, ethical considerations and critical thinking.
Updates will focus on maintaining flexibility while ensuring language proficiency and essential


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=gydrgL&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NjM4N319
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=ovIybl&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NjQ5N319

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

skills remain central. She noted undergraduates are generally skeptical of Al, particularly its
environmental impact, and the curriculum is being designed to address these concerns as well.

Associate Professor Ponder raised a concern about the framing and messaging of the program.
He noted that the name "Communication" was chosen without consultation with the School of
Communications or Communication Studies and suggested that this oversight could be easily
remedied.

Associate Professor Villa-Ignacio explained that she joined the faculty in 2022 and is speaking as
the translation unit coordinator. She noted that there has been prior discussion about offering a
course in intercultural communication at the master's level and that undergraduate students
sometimes take courses in the School of Communication to avoid duplication. She emphasized
that the minor focuses on translation, multilingual and multimodal communication, including
audiovisual translation, reflecting current industry terminology. She acknowledged that the
proposal could have benefitted from consulting the School of Communication and expressed
willingness to do so. The minor was designed to maintain cohort sizes and address low
enrollment in specific language courses while pausing the B.S. in Translation. She stressed that
the program remains multilingual and does not intend to encroach on other departments.

Associate Dean Warren acknowledged that it was an oversight not to consult with the college
regarding the program name or content. She apologized for the oversight and noted that the item
could be removed from the agenda to allow for proper consultation.

Associate Professor Ponder mentioned at that first meeting he would have raised this and noted it
is a short conversation needed to ensure everyone is on the same page. He emphasized that it was
just a quick review and, after listening to the presentation, he believes a small conversation
would suffice.

Associate Professor Villa-Ignacio stated she is open to temporarily removing "and multilingual
communication" from the minor’s name if that helps. She emphasized that the exact name is less
important than ensuring students can study translation and earn the credential as soon as
possible, especially since the B.S. program will be paused, potentially for up to three years,
though she hopes it can be shorter. She suggested calling it simply the "Translation minor" or
"minor in Translation Studies" rather than using the B.S. designation. She acknowledged the
need for consultation with colleagues and is willing to take responsibility for the naming
decision.

Chair Dauterich stated he can call for a motion to establish the minor. He noted that if there is no
motion and second, the item would return for consultation before proceeding.

Dean Shadduck made a motion to approve, and Professor Cunningham seconded.

With no further questions or comments, the item passed unanimously with the understanding that
consultation will take place.

College of Education, Health and Human Services
6. Education — Minor—Inactivate minor (fall 2026)
7. Education — Undergraduate Certificate—Establish certificate (fall2026)



Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Interim Associate Dean Walton-Fisette explained that the minor is being inactivated and replaced
with a certificate for financial aid purposes. Aside from the change in designation, nothing else
about the program has changed.

Associate Professor Earp motioned to approve, and Associate Professor Ensley seconded.

Associate Professor Wamsley asked whether there is a difference between the minor and a
certificate.

Interim Associate Dean Walton-Fisette explained that the education minor exists for individuals
in TESOL and world languages to obtain state licensure. She noted that for these students, the
minor does not affect licensure since it is based on the transcript and courses taken. She
emphasized that the minor is additional to their degree program and clarified that its existence is
related to financial aid considerations.

Secretary Kellogg explained that the change from a minor to a certificate is driven by financial
aid rules. She noted that for minors, only courses required in a student’s program are covered by
financial aid, and adding a minor outside the program could create issues. By converting the
minor to a certificate, students can declare it and receive financial aid for the required courses.

Associate Professor Wamsley asked whether this change could apply broadly or is discipline
specific.

Secretary Kellogg clarified that this situation is specific because of the number of hours involved
and the connection to licensure, making a certificate more appropriate than a minor.

With no further questions or comments, the items passed unanimously.

School of Foundations, Leadership and Administration

Programs moving to the School of Teaching, Learning and Curriculum Studies

8. Cultural Foundations — M.Ed.—Revise department, course requirements (fall 2026)

9. Cultural Foundations — Ph.D.— Revise department, description, outcomes, course
requirements, graduation requirements; revise delivery from in person to mostly online (fall
2026); revise admission requirements (spring 2027)

10. Disability Studies and Community Inclusion — Graduate Certificate—Revise
department/college, course requirements, graduation requirements (fall 2026)

11. Higher Education Administration — Ph.D.—Revise department, outcomes, application
deadlines, course requirements (fall 2026)

12. Institutional Research and Assessment — Graduate Certificate—Revise department, course
requirements (fall 2026)

13. Institutional Research and Assessment — Graduate Certificate—revise department, course
requirements (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Interim Associate Dean Walton-Fisette explained that programs are being reorganized by area.
She will present the first section on the move to the School of Teaching, Learning and
Curriculum Studies, Aaron will cover the next section, and she will present the Health Sciences
section.


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=3A7hnJ&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NzM5N319
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=pCXbC7&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6NzcwOX19

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

Associate Professor Earp made a motion to approve, and Associate Professor Wamsley seconded
the motion.

With no questions or comments, the items passed unanimously.

Programs moving to the Department of Sport, Hospitality and Event Management in the
Ambassador Crawford College of Business and Entrepreneurship

14. Esports — Minor—Revise department/college (fall 2026)

15. Event Planning — Minor—Revise department/college, course requirements (fall 2026)
16. Hospitality and Event Management - B.S.— Revise department/college (fall 2026)
17. Hospitality and Event Management - Minor—Revise department/college (fall 2026)
18. Hospitality and Tourism Management - M.S.—Revise department/college (fall 2026)
19. Sport Administration - B.S. Revise department/college (fall 2026)

20. Sport Administration - M.A.—Revise department/college (fall 2026)

21. Sport Administration — Minor—Revise department/college, outcomes (fall 2026)
VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Senior Lecturer Marshall made a motion to approve, and Professor Piontkivska seconded the
motion.

With no questions or comments, the items passed unanimously.

School of Health Sciences

22. Audiology - Ph.D. —Inactivate degree program; admission was

suspended fall 2023 (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Assistant Professor Durant explained that as part of Kent State's R1 designation, the university
conducted a self-study comparing itself to near peers and developed an interdisciplinary Ph.D. in
Communication Sciences and Disorders. This inactivates the discipline-specific Audiology
Research Ph.D.

Assistant Professor Reed motioned to approve, and Senior Lecturer Marshall seconded.
With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

programs moving to the School of Teaching, Learning and Curriculum Studies

23. Health Education and Promotion - M.Ed.—Suspend admission temporarily; revise
department, course requirements (fall 2026)

24. Health Education and Promotion - Ph.D.—Suspend admission temporarily; revise
department (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Interim Associate Dean Walton-Fisette stated that the programs are being suspended and will be
taught out while they move schools.

Professor Cunningham motioned to approve, and Associate Professor Earp seconded.
With no questions or comments, the item passed unanimously.

programs moving to the College of Public Health (presented by Director John McDaniel)


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=C41ZtX&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6Nzc5OX19
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=2iDIgT&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6Nzg5My41MX19
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=5mxRqk&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6Nzk5NX19

Educational Policies Council Meeting Minutes Monday, 17 November 2025

25. Athletic Training - M.S.—Revise department/college, graduation

requirements (fall 2026)

26. Audiology - Au.D.—Revise department/college, graduation requirements, CIP (fall 2026)
27. Audiology - M.A.—Revise department/college, outcomes, graduation requirements, CIP (fall
2026)

28. Communication Sciences and Disorders - Ph.D.—Revise department/college, graduation
requirements (fall 2026)

29. Exercise Physiology - M.S.—Revise department/college, graduation

requirements (fall 2026)

30 Exercise Physiology - Ph.D. -- Revise department/college, graduation

requirements (fall 2026)

31 Exercise Science - B.S. -- Revise department/college, course requirements,

roadmap (fall 2026)

32 Integrated Health Studies - B.S. -- Revise department/college, outcomes, course
requirements (fall 2026)

33 Speech Pathology and Audiology - B.S. -- Revise department/college, course requirements,
roadmap (fall 2026)

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Chair Dauterich noted that items 25 through 33 involve revisions and program movements to the
College of Public Health.

Senior Lecturer Marshall made a motion to approve, and Associate Lecturer Earp seconded.

V. Course Proposals Review

A. Lesser Action Items—New/Revised Course Subjects (fall 2026)

1. INLD (Interprofessional Leadership)—Establish

VIEW THE DISCUSSION

Dean Shadduck asked for more information on the Interprofessional Leadership course listed
under lesser action items A in the course proposals review, noting that no additional link or
details were provided.

Secretary Kellogg explained that a new course subject, INLD, is being established. She noted
that this subject did not previously exist and that currently only the EHHS courses are changing
to the INLD designation.

Interim Dean Walton-Fisette explained that the program spans multiple schools, and as part of
inactivation and reorganization, two schools are being inactivated, and programs are being
realigned under a single school umbrella. She noted that a college name change will also be
coming in the next few months.

With no further questions or comments, Chair Dauterich concluded the meeting at 5:36pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Chriatz /) Ot

Christa N. Ord
Operations and Special Projects Coordinator, Curriculum Services
Office of the Provost


https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=POygWL&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6ODA1M319
https://ksuprod-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/cord_kent_edu/EejqQBmTUApKtkK5seOANQEBT7k4Gv_X8krL-LPHcp0TIA?e=etWcFa&nav=eyJyZWZlcnJhbEluZm8iOnsicmVmZXJyYWxBcHAiOiJTdHJlYW1XZWJBcHAiLCJyZWZlcnJhbFZpZXciOiJTaGFyZURpYWxvZy1MaW5rIiwicmVmZXJyYWxBcHBQbGF0Zm9ybSI6IldlYiIsInJlZmVycmFsTW9kZSI6InZpZXcifSwicGxheWJhY2tPcHRpb25zIjp7InN0YXJ0VGltZUluU2Vjb25kcyI6ODEzNX19

